
OPPAL Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

On Wednesday, September 2, 2015, the meeting of the Optional Personal Property Assessment Link 
(OPPAL) Advisory Committee was held at 10:00AM in the Property Tax Division Conference Room.  Those 
in attendance included Committee Chairperson Jennifer Byrd, committee members Don Armstrong, Jim 
Carmichael, Robert Miller, Leigh Ann Fair, Wendy Williams, and Glen Ford.  Also in attendance were 
Department of Revenue employees Bill Bass, Hartley McLaney, Will Martin, Derrick Coleman, Debbie 
Hornsby, Gary Graham, Arleen Alexander, Evelyn Pope, and Deputy Revenue Commissioner Joe Garrett.  
Committee members Mandi Freeman, Greg Norris, and Chris Kuykendall were not present.  

Committee Chairperson Jennifer Byrd opened the meeting by welcoming everyone and thanking them for 
their attendance.  She reviewed the minutes from the previous meeting.  Don Armstrong made a motion 
that the minutes be approved with Leigh Ann Fair seconding the motion.  The motion carried and the 
minutes were so approved.  

Jennifer Byrd asked the committee for any old business.  There was none to discuss. 

Jennifer Byrd then introduced new business, which consisted of a demonstration of the OPPAL prototype 
website.  The purpose of which was to show the progress of the design and get feedback from committee 
members regarding its appearance and functionality.  She explained that at the November committee 
meeting PCC will present the working model of the website.  She gave the website address as 
www.OPPALalabama.gov.    

The demonstration of OPPAL began with the review of the screens in the order that a taxpayer or 
taxpayer’s agent would progress through the site.  Arleen Alexander suggested that the wording of the 
airplane question in the “Do I Need to File a Business Personal Property Return?” section should match 
the airplane question on the questionnaire and it was later pointed out that the wording should also be 
the same in Part C of the return.   

Discussion of the Supplies question in the questionnaire followed.  Robert Miller and Jim Carmichael 
suggested that the supplies on hand question should be moved to Part A and not be part of the 
questionnaire at all.  Robert Miller asked if the supplies amount from the previous year would be visible 
to the taxpayer on the Part A schedule, as it is on the paper return.  Jennifer Byrd answered that it would 
be overwritten by the program and should not appear.  It was decided by the committee that the Supplies 
question should only appear on Part A of the schedule.  Robert Miller asked if the supplies date acquired 
would pre-fill for the current year and Jennifer Byrd said that she would ask PCC if that could be done. 

Jennifer Byrd demonstrated the functionality of the on-screen schedule and the Excel file template for 
Part A.  Robert Miller asked about the date format for the “date acquired” field and whether it would 
include month and day as well as year of acquisition.  Wendy Williams stated that it could be important 
to have specific dates, particularly for abatements.  Jennifer Byrd said that the vendors would have fields 
for month, day, and year and the format on the website would follow those fields.  When Jennifer Byrd 
demonstrated the Excel template for Part A, Jim Carmichael asked if it would populate with the 
information from the previous year’s filing.  Jennifer Byrd said that it would not and the template was for 

http://www.oppalalabama.gov/


the current year information to be uploaded by the taxpayer.  A question regarding whether the disposal 
date of an asset should have a place to be reported on the Excel template was raised.  The consensus of 
the committee was that there should be a cell for disposal date of any asset on the template. 

Part B and Part B-1 of the return were presented.  Jennifer Byrd showed the schedule, which would most 
likely not be populated with any vehicle information the first year since the vendors previously did not 
have data fields for any section other than Part A.  The CAMA vendors have now created fields for all of 
the other schedules so, in future years, there will be data in any section that a taxpayer had reported in a 
previous year.  Jennifer Byrd showed the committee that the Excel templates for Parts B and B-1 were 
both in different worksheets in the same Excel workbook.  She explained that PCC would change that so 
that the two templates would be accessed separately. 

Parts C, and D were shown, as well as save and exit features which allow a taxpayer to save their progress, 
exit the program, and return at a later time.  Gary Graham asked if there was an automatic save feature, 
in case of power failure, etc., or a periodic save feature that would allow the taxpayer to continue.  Jennifer 
Byrd will address this issue with PCC. 

Jennifer Byrd continued with Parts E and F, which she explained were only for informational purposes to 
the county.  She then displayed the review page and demonstrated the submission protocols for taxpayers 
or taxpayers’ agents. 

The FAQ page was discussed.  PCC will make changes to the FAQ’s listed.  Wendy Williams asked about 
the dashboard screen regarding amended and submitted returns and how they would be shown on the 
“filings” sections.  Jennifer Byrd explained that amended returns could not be done through OPPAL and 
there would be no returns allowed through OPPAL after January 31 of each year.   

Jennifer Byrd explained that there would be tutorial videos for taxpayers and taxpayer’s agents which 
could be accessed on the website.  Robert Miller asked if a first time user would have to have a PIN number 
to use OPPAL if they have never filed a return before.  Jennifer Byrd said that there was no need for a PIN 
in order to file for the first time.   

Jennifer Byrd stated that the site will need to have a choice for the taxpayer of which county they are 
reporting property in to determine whether they are reporting to a county that has their own filing 
website.  If they are reporting in multiple counties they will have different accounts and PIN’s for each 
location.  Discussion followed of how different types of property and exemptions would be handled.  It 
was discussed that property subject to constitutional exemptions does not have to be reported to receive 
the exemption but property exempted statutorily would have to be reported.  Will Martin suggested that 
there should be some explanation of exemptions on the Part A schedule where exemptions are asked for.  
Jennifer Byrd suggested that there should be a hyperlink to the section of the Code in which exemptions 
were discussed. 

Jim Carmichael suggested that there should be a question on the questionnaire as to whether the business 
has tangible personal property at all.  It is listed on the “Do I Need to File” section but not in the 



questionnaire.  Arleen Alexander suggested that the “Do I Need to File a Business Personal Property 
Return” should be on the homepage as well as the dashboard.   

Jennifer Byrd ended the demonstration and continued with reporting other business related to OPPAL.  
She noted that there would be a data dump from the counties later in September.  PCC will be in 
Montgomery to observe the data dump.  In November, PCC will deliver a functional prototype of the 
website and the Dept. of Revenue will begin testing of the system.  In April, select advisory committee 
members and property owners will begin testing.  In September 2016 there will be a final data dump from 
the counties and on October 1, 2016 the system will be available to taxpayers. 

A discussion of the potential use of the OPPAL system by taxpayers followed.  Several committee members 
commented on the use of other tax reporting systems within the state and the likelihood of taxpayers 
using electronic filing.   

Jennifer Byrd asked the committee for a schedule of dates for the 2016 meetings of the advisory 
committee.  The committee agreed to continue meetings on the first Wednesday of every other month 
beginning in January.   

Jennifer Byrd asked for any other business.  Jim Carmichael asked if the counties with their own systems 
would have to use OPPAL.  Jennifer Byrd explained that taxpayers reporting to those counties would be 
directed to their websites directly and would not report through OPPAL.  Robert Miller asked if other 
counties purchased their own systems would they change over from OPPAL.  Jennifer Byrd stated that 
would be the case.   

Jennifer Byrd announced the next meeting will be November 4, 2015 in the Property Tax conference room 
and that all meeting date information would be posted on the Deptartment of Revenue website.  She 
thanked everyone for their attendance and the meeting was adjourned at 11:05 a.m. 


